1. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 


This appeal arises from the Ritchie County Circuit Court's decision to prevent the 

jury from considering evidence of comparative fault in a motor vehicle accident. After this error, 

the circuit court permitted the jury to consider whether a trust was liable for the accident without 

sufficient evidence to support the verdict, and refused to properly instruct the jury regarding a 

trustee's personal liability. The Petitioners, Robert Paul Jackson ("Mr. Jackson") and the 

Joelynn Family Preservation Trust ("the Trust"), request a new trial and judgment in favor of the 

Trust to correct these errors. 

On June 7, 2014, Mr. Jackson drove his Ford pickup truck to a restaurant in 

Pennsboro, West Virginia. [J.A. 525.] He ate breakfast and talked with friends. [J.A. 525.] 

After socializing, he stopped at Ace Hardware and purchased pipe to extend a drain near a house 

he has lived in since the mid-1970s. [lAo 184; lA. 190.] 

After he left Ace Hardware, he proceeded dO\vn the hill and stopped at the 

intersection of Ritchie County Industrial Park Road and Route 50. [J.A. 528-530.] He looked to 

his left and noticed a semi-truck coming up the grade toward him in the right eastbound lane of 

Route 50. [J.A.530.] He thought he had enough time to cross ahead of the truck and he pulled 

across the eastbound lanes to turn left on westbound Route 50. [J.A. 528-30.] At the same time, 

unnoticed by Mr. Jackson, the decedent, Harry Myer, Jr., was operating a Kawasaki motorcycle 

in the right eastbound lane on Route 50 ahead of the semi-truck. [lA. 533.] When Mr. Jackson 

crossed, he saw the motorcycle and tried to quickly get out of the eastbound lanes, and did in fact 

clear the slow lane. [J.A. 541.] However, Mr. Myer's motorcycle collided with the very end of 

Mr. Jackson's truck bed which was still protruding into and blocking the fast lane. [J.A. 471

73.] The collision resulted in Mr. Myer's death. 



Corporal J. L. Brewer with the West Virginia State Police investigated the 

accident and prepared a crash report. [J.A. 453-64.] Corporal Brewer determined that the motor 

vehicles collided near the lines dividing the fast and slow lanes of eastbound Route 50. [See J.A. 

454.] Corporal Brewer also prepared a crash diagram and took photographs of the accident 

scene. The crash diagram and the photographs clearly showed that Mr. Myer's skid marks began 

in the center of the right (slow) eastbound lane of Route 50 and ended at the lane-dividing lines. 

[lA. 455; J.A. 474-77.] 

On September 10, 2014, Respondent Pamela Brown filed a wrongful death 

lawsuit against Mr. Jackson. The case proceeded solely against Mr. Jackson for more than one 

year. On October 29, 2015, the Respondent filed her Amended Complaint and named 

Mr. Jackson's family trust ("the Trust") as an additional defendant. [J.A. 7-12.] The Respondent 

alleged that Mr. Jackson, in his capacity as Trustee, acted as the Trust's agent at the time of the 

accident. [J.A. 7-12.] 

The Respondent moved for summary judgment on the issue of liability. [J.A. 25

28.] The Petitioners opposed the motion and provided evidence of Mr. Myer's comparative 

fault. [lA. 78-82.] The Petitioners relied on Corporal Brewer's investigation and report, which 

showed that Mr. Myer went to the left and directly into Mr. Jackson's truck. [See lA. 81-82.] 

The Petitioners also relied on the testimony of Respondent's accident reconstructionist and 

expert witness, Dan Aemi. [See J.A. 81-82.] Mr. Aemi testified that Mr. Myer started in the 

right eastbound lane when he began applying his brakes and that the point of impact was "[v]ery 

close to the broken white line separating the two eastbound lanes of Route 50 and approximately 

in the center of the intersection." [J.A. 507-08.] Mr. Aerni's calculations showed that Mr. Myer 

was approximately 320 feet from the impact location when Mr. Jackson began accelerating. 

[J.A. 504.] Additionally, Mr. Aemi opined that 2.8 seconds passed between the start of 
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Mr. Jackson's acceleration and the application of the brakes by Mr. Myer. [J.A. 497-98.] 

Despite this evidence, the circuit court granted the Respondent's motion for summary judgment 

on the issue ofliability by order entered March 10,2016. [lA. 155-161.] 

The Petitioners moved for summary judgment on the Trust's liability. [J.A. 58

62.] The Petitioners showed that the Respondent failed to present any evidence that Mr. Jackson 

acted with the sanction of the Trust beneficiaries and under the Trust beneficiaries' supervision 

and control at the time of the accident. The circuit court denied this motion by order entered 

March 10,2016. [lA. 151-154.] 

A jury trial regarding damages and the Trust's liability commenced on May 11, 

2016. Mr. Jackson testified that he established the Trust in 1993 for the benefit of his sister and 

children. [J.A. 186; 201.] Mr. Jackson also testified that the house is an asset in the Trust, and 

that he has lived in the house since the mid-1970s. [lAo 184-86.] Mr. Jackson testified that the 

Trust beneficiaries did not direct him to purchase the pipe. [lA. 196; lA. 202.] Instead, he 

decided to purchase the pipe on his own volition. [lA. 189.] The Respondent did not elicit 

testimony from any Trust beneficiary. The Petitioners moved the circuit court for a directed 

verdict based upon the Respondent's failure to provide evidence that Mr. Jackson acted with the 

sanction of the Trust beneficiaries and under the Trust beneficiaries' supervision and control at 

the time of the accident. [lA. 206-09.] The circuit court denied this motion and stated that Mr. 

Jackson's testimony indicated that the beneficiaries were around and "in the loop" regarding 

various matters. [lA.208-09.] 

After the close of evidence, the Petitioners proposed three (3) jury instructions on 

the issue of the Trust's liability, based on Massey v. Payne, 109 W. Va. 529, 155 S.E. 658 

(1930), and West Virginia Code § 44D-IO-10IO(b). [lA. 605-07.] These jury instructions were 

offered for the position that a trust is not liable for the torts committed by the trustee when there 
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is no evidence that the trustee acted with the sanction of the trust and under the trust's 

supervision and control. The circuit court refused all three (3) proposed jury instructions. 

The jury returned a verdict finding that Mr. lackson acted as an agent of the Trust 

and holding the Trust liable for the accident. [l.A. 652.] The jury awarded the Respondent 

Administratrix $543,202.17. [l.A. 652-53.] The jury awarded $300,000 for sorrow, mental 

anguish and loss of solace. [l.A. 652.] The jury awarded another $200,000 for loss of services, 

protection, care and assistance provided by the decedent. [lAo 652.] The jury awarded 

$11 ,202.17 for funeral expenses and a headstone. [l.A. 652.] The remaining $32,000 was 

awarded by the jury for [future] lost wages. [l.A. 652.] The Petitioners objected to a proposed 

judgment order that awarded prejudgment interest on the expected loss of income. [l.A. 655.] 

The circuit court awarded prejudgment interest on this amount over the Petitioners' objection. 

[l.A. 683.] 

The circuit court did not allow the Petitioners to present any evidence regarding 

Mr. Myer's comparative fault. However, the Petitioners were permitted to vouch the record 

outside the presence of the jury. Corporal Brewer testified that Mr. Myer's skid marks "started 

basically in the center of the driving lane or the right lane of the eastbound lane" and ended 

"toward the hash marks or the middle of the lane in the intersection." [l.A. 215.] Corporal 

Brewer further testified that the point of impact was approximately near the center of the dotted 

white lines. [l.A. 215.] The Petitioners moved into the record Corporal Brewer's crash report 

and photographs showing that Mr. Myer's skid marks began in the center of the right, eastbound 

lane of Route 50 and ended at the lane-dividing lines. [l.A. 453-77.] Mr. Aerni's deposition 

transcript was also moved into the record. [l.A.486-516.] 

The Petitioners filed post-trial motions that requested the circuit court to reverse 

its summary judgment ruling on the issue of Mr. Myer's comparative fault, set aside the verdict 
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against the Trust, and order a new trial based upon the circuit court's refusal to instruct the jury 

regarding a trustee's personal liability. [J.A. 659-68.] The circuit court denied the Petitioners' 

post-trial motions by order entered July 6, 2016. [J.A. 676-77.] 

II. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

A. The circuit court erred by finding that no genuine issue of material fact 

existed with respect to Mr. Myer's comparative fault. 

B. The circuit court erred by permitting the jury to find the Trust liable for 

the accident, when insufficient evidence was presented that Mr. Jackson acted with the sanction 

of the Trust beneficiaries and under the Trust beneficiaries' supervision and control at the time of 

the accident. 

C. The circuit court erred by failing to instruct the-jury regarding a trustee's 

personal liability. 

D. The circuit court incorrectly awarded prejudgment interest on an award for 

future lost wages. 

III. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

A new trial is required in this case to allow a jury to consider Mr. Myer's 

comparative fault and, if judgment against the Trust is not set aside by this Court, to correct the 

circuit court's failure to properly instruct the jury with regard to a trustee's personal liability. 

First, the circuit court erroneously determined that no genuine issue of material fact existed with 

respect to Mr. Myer's comparative fault. The circuit court concluded that Mr. Myer was 

traveling near the dividing line of the two eastbound lanes of Route 50. However, 
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uncontroverted evidence clearly showed that Mr. Myer went left directly into Mr. Jackson's 

truck while the right (slow) lane was clear. 

Next, the circuit court detemlined that the skid-mark evidence is equally 

susceptible to an interpretation that Mr. Myer took proper evasive action in attempting to go in 

front of Mr. Jackson's vehicle and resolved this conflict on its own by concluding that 

"whenever evidence is equally susceptible to two (2) conflicting interpretations the same fails to 

pass the relevancy test required for its admissibility." Whether Mr. Myer took proper evasive 

action is a question that should have been resolved by the jury. Further, the circuit court ignored 

issues of material fact regarding Mr. Myer's reaction time and improperly prohibited the 

Petitioners from relying upon the testimony and opinions elicited from the Respondent's expert 

through cross-examination. After committing these errors, the circuit court incorrectly 

concluded that the Respondent was entitled to summary judgment because Mr. Jackson failed to 

yield the right-of-way, without considering whether Mr. Myer exercised reasonable care. 

Second, the circuit court permitted the jury to find the Trust liable for the 

accident, despite no evidence demonstrating that Mr. Jackson acted with the sanction of the Trust 

beneficiaries and under the Trust beneficiaries' supervision and control at the time of the 

accident. Third, the circuit court ignored West Virginia law regarding a trustee's personal 

liability and rejected all of the Petitioners' proposed jury instructions. Finally, the circuit court 

incorrectly awarded prejudgment interest on an award for future lost wages. 

IV. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT 

Oral argument is unnecessary, because the facts and legal arguments can be 

adequately presented by the parties' briefs and the record on appeal. 
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V.ARGUMENT 


This Court reviews a circuit court's entry of summary judgment de novo. See Syl. 

Pt. 1, Painter v. Peavy, 192 W. Va. 189,451 S.E.2d 755 (1994). "A motion for summary 

judgment should be granted only when it is clear that there is no genuine issue of fact to be tried 

and inquiry concerning the facts is not desirable to clarify the application of the law." Syl. Pt. 3, 

Aetna Cas. & Sur. Co. v. Federal Ins. Co. ofN.Y., 148 W. Va. 160,133 S.E.2d 770 (1963). "A 

party is not entitled to summary judgment unless the facts established show a right to judgment 

with such clarity as to leave no room for controversy and show affirmatively that the adverse 

party cannot prevail under any circumstances." Id. at 171, 133 S.E.2d at 777. 

"[I]n reviewing an order granting a motion for summary judgment, any 

permissible inferences from the underlying facts must be drawn in the light most favorable to the 

party opposing the motion." Chichester ex rei. Estate of Cook v. Cook, 234 ·W. Va. 183,188, 

764 S.E.2d 343,348 (2014). In this case, the circuit court did not view the facts in the light most 

favorable to the Petitioners and drew its own inferences from the underlying facts when it 

decided summary judgment on the issue of liability. 

A. 	 GENUINE ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACT EXISTED WITH RESPECT TO 
MR. MYER'S COMPARATIVE FAULT. 

The circuit court completely ignored evidence, drew its own inferences from 

evidence and substituted its own judgment in place of a jury when it determined that no genuine 

issue of material fact existed with respect to Mr. Myer's comparative fault. 

First, the circuit court concluded that Mr. Myer "applied his brakes as his 

motorcycle was traveling near the broken white dividing line in the right-hand, eastbound lane of 

U.S. Route 50 as he approached [Petitioner] Robert Paul Jackson's truck blocking his lane of 

travel." [J.A. 157-58.] However, uncontroverted evidence clearly showed that Mr. Myers 
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applied his brakes near the center of the right lane, and that he went to the left and into 

Mr. Jackson's truck. On this fact, Corporal Brewer testified as follows: 

Q. 	 Can you describe the skid marks where they started and 
where they ended up? 

A. 	 They started basically in the center of the driving lane or 
the right lane of the eastbound lane, if that makes sense. 
They end up toward the hash marks or the middle of the 
lane in the intersection. 

Q. 	 When you say the hash marks, that would be the dotted 
white line that separates the fast from the slow lane? 

A. 	 Correct. 

Q. 	 From your examination and inspection of the scene of the 
accident, would it be your conclusion that the point of 
impact was basically where the dotted lines were? 

A. 	 Correct. Approximately near the center. 

[J.A. 215.] Corporal Brewer's crash diagram and photographs of the accident scene corroborated 

his testimony and clearly showed that Mr. Myer's skid marks started in the middle of the right 

lane and went left directly toward the lane-dividing lines. [l.A. 455; J.A. 474-77.] 

Likewise, the Respondent's expert Mr. Aerni testified that Mr. Myer started off in 

the right eastbound lane and that the point of impact was "very close to the broken white line 

separating the two eastbound lanes of Route 50 and ... approximately in the center of the 

[highway]." [l.A. 507-08.] The circuit court ignored this evidence and mistakenly found that 

Mr. Myers applied his brakes as his motorcycle was traveling near the broken white dividing 

line. 

Additionally, the circuit court erroneously found that Mr. Jackson blocked 

Mr. Myer's lane of travel. Both Corporal Brewer and Mr. Aerni testified that the point of impact 

was approximately at the lane-dividing lines. Mr. Myer's motorcycle collided with the very end 

of Mr. Jackson's truck bed. [See lA. 471-73.] Moreover, Mr. Aerni indicated that even the 
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nearby semi-truck had sufficient room to travel through the right lane after the collision. [J.A. 

503-04.] Mr. Aerni's calculations demonstrated that Mr. Myer was approximately 320 feet from 

the impact location when Mr. Jackson began accelerating. [J.A. 504.] The evidence in this case 

showed that Mr. Jackson cleared the right lane. Therefore, the circuit court had no basis for 

finding that Mr. Jackson blocked that lane. 

Second, the circuit court determined that "[t]he skid mark evidence is equally 

susceptible to an interpretation that the same was indicative of proper evasive action on the part 

of [Mr. Myer] in attempting to go around the front of [Mr. Jackson's] vehicle believing he would 

retreat while unaware that [Mr. Jackson] was going to speed up." [J.A. 158.] The circuit court 

added that, "[w]henever evidence is equally susceptible to two (2) conflicting interpretations the 

same fails to pass the relevancy test required for its admissibility as prescribed by Rule 401 of 

the West Virginia Rules of Evidence." [J.A. 159.] 

Clearly, the circuit court did not view the facts in the light most favorable to the 

non-moving party (the Petitioners), as required by West Virginia law. See Williams v. Precision 

Coil, Inc., 194 W. Va. 52, 59,459 S.E.2d 329, 336 (1995). The Petitioners were not granted "the 

benefit of inferences, [since] credibility determinations, the weighing of the evidence, and the 

drawing of legitimate inferences from the facts are jury functions, not those of a judge." Id. 

(citation and internal quotations omitted). Evidence that is equally susceptible to two (2) 

conflicting interpretations must be left to the jury. Whether Mr. Myer took proper evasive action 

is a question for the jury to resolve. Instead, the circuit court weighed the evidence, determined 

that the evidence is equally susceptible to two (2) conflicting interpretations, and decided against 

the Petitioner's position (while adopting the Respondent's position). 

In doing so, the circuit court assumed the role of the jury. The role of the jury is 

especially important in a comparative negligence action, where the issue of apportionment of 
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negligence "is one for the jury or other trier of the facts, and only in the clearest of cases where 

the facts are undisputed and reasonable minds can draw but one inference from them should such 

issue be determined as a matter of law." Syl. Pt. 2, in part, Reager v. Anderson, 179 W. Va. 691, 

371 S.E.2d 619 (1988). Moreover, "[q]uestions of negligence, due care, proximate cause and 

concurrent negligence present issues of fact for jury determination when the evidence pertaining 

to such issues is conflicting or where the facts, even though undisputed, are such that reasonable 

men may draw different conclusions from them." Syl. Pt. 1, Ratliefv. Yokum, 167 W. Va. 779, 

280 S.E.2d 584 (1981). The circuit court substituted its own judgment for that of the jury and 

viewed the facts in the light most favorable to Respondents rather than in the light most 

favorable to the non-moving party (the Petitioners). 

Third, the circuit court ignored issues of material fact regarding Mr. Myer's 

reaction time. Mr. Aerni calculated that approximately 4.2 seconds passed from the time that 

Mr. Jackson pulled out until the point of impact. [J.A. 497.] Mr. Aerni determined that 

Mr. Myer was approximately 320 feet from the impact location when Mr. Jackson began 

accelerating. [J.A. 504.] Additionally, Mr. Aerni opined that 2.8 seconds passed between the 

start ofMr. Jackson's acceleration and the application of the brakes by Mr. Myer. [J.A.497-98.] 

Moreover, Mr. Jackson testified that a semi-truck was approximately 1,350 feet away in the right 

lane when he pulled out. [J.A. 549.] Mr. Aerni opined that the motorcycle was in front of the 

semi-truck. [J.A. 504.] The Petitioners presented evidence demonstrating that the semi-truck 

had sufficient room in the right lane, while Mr. Myer went to the left and into Mr. Jackson's 

truck. The circuit court ignored the issues of material fact concerning whether Mr. Myer had 

sufficient time to avoid the collision. 

Fourth, the circuit court found that the Petitioners "produced no expert witness to 

offer testimony and opinion which would contradict the findings and opinions of Plaintiff's 
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expert crash reconstructionist, Daniel Aemi, P.E." [J.A. 158.] However, the Petitioners are 

permitted to rely upon an opposing expert's testimony and opinions. The Petitioners provided 

the circuit court with evidence in support of their position through Mr. Aemi's cross

examination. The jury was entitled to weigh the evidence obtained through cross-examination 

and make a determination regarding comparative fault. See, e.g., CJH, Inc. v. Quadruple S, 

Farms, LLC, 2013 WL 2462192, *4 (June 7,2013) (memorandum) ("While petitioner contends 

that its claimed damages amounts were not rebutted, the jury was able to weigh the evidence and 

make a determination of the amount petitioner was entitled to recover through respondent's 

cross-examinations." (emphasis added)). 

After committing these errors, the circuit court incorrectly concluded that the 

Respondent was entitled to summary judgment because Mr. Jackson failed to yield the right-of

way, without considering whether Mr. Myer exercised reasonable care. [lA. 160.] This Court

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