I. RESPONSE TO ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

Contrary to the assignments of error set forth by the Petitioners, the Circuit Court of 

Ritchie County correctly found for the Plaintiff below and properly granted summary jUdgment on 

the issue ofliability ofRobert Paul Jackson (hereinafter sometimes referred to as "Jackson"). The 

Petitioners' argument for comparative fault of the decedent was based solely on speculation and 

conjecture. From the totality of the evidence presented, the record could not lead a rational trier 

offact to find for the Petitioners because there was no factual basis to support their claim of liability 

of the decedent.

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

IV. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT 

This Court should deny the Petitioner's requested relief and affirm the rulings and verdict 

from the Circuit Court. The overwhelming evidence in this matter contradicts the false and 

misleading statements of the Petitioner and liability on the part of Jackson was established as a 

matter of law. Therefore, the Court properly evaluated the relevant, admissible evidence and 

correctly granted summary judgment on that issue. 

In addition, the Circuit Court properly instructed the jury with regard to the Trust's liability. 

The jury considered the evidence and deliberated on the matter, returning a verdict against the 

Trust and the jury's verdict should not be disturbed. Likewise, the Circuit Court properly rejected 

the Petitioners' jury instructions on trustee's personal liability insofar as they were already covered 

in the charge or were misstatements of the law. Lastly, the Court properly awarded prejudgment 

interest on the decedent's lost wages and fringe benefits which, contrary to the Petitioners' 

statements, were for past wages and fringe benefits. 

of evidence that the lost wages award was for future lost wages. The $32,000.00 award was equivalent to 
one year of lost wages as set forth by both expert witnesses, infra. Harry Edward Myer, Jr., was killed 
nearly two years prior to trial. 
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Even ifthere was error, that error was harmless. If the Circuit Court had not granted partial 

summary judgment, the verdict would not have been different considering all the evidence and 

Jackson's prima facie negligence. No reasonable juror could conclude otherwise given the 

overwhelming weight of the evidence proving the Petitioners' negligence in this case. 

V. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Oral argument is not necessary for this Court to affirm the discretionary decision of the 

Circuit Court of Ritchie County in this appeal. Pursuant to Rule 18(a) of the West Virginia Rules 

ofAppellate Procedure, oral argument is unnecessary where the appeal is frivolous, the dispositive 

issues have been authoritatively decided or the facts and legal arguments are adequately presented 

in the briefs and record on appeal and the decisional process would not be significantly aided by 

the oral argument. Moreover, the Defendants have raised nothing novel in their assignments of 

error. Therefore, Mrs. Brown respectfully submits that this matter meets the criteria of Rule 18(a) 

and oral argument is not necessary. 

VI. ARGUMENT 

A. 	 THE CIRCUIT COURT DID NOT ERR WHEN IT GRANTED 
SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON THE ISSUE OF DEFENDANT ROBERT 
PAUL JACKSON'S LIABILITY. 

The Court did not err when it granted partial summary judgment on the issue of the liability 

of Robert Paul Jackson. There was no issue of material fact for the jury to determine with regard 
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to liability for the crash. This Court has held that "[t]he Circuit Court's function at the summary 

judgment stage is not to weigh the evidence and detem1ine the truth of the matter, but is to 

determine whether there is a genuine issue for trial." Syl. Pt. 3, Painter v. Peavy, 192 W.Va. 189, 

451 S.E.2d 755 (1994). This Court has also noted that "[s]ummary judgment is appropriate if, 

from the totality of the evidence presented, the record could not lead a rational trier of fact to find 

for the nonmoving party, such as where the nonmoving party has failed to make a sufficient 

showing on an essential element of the case that it has the burden to prove." Syl. Pt. 2, Williams 

v. Precision Coil, Inc., 194 W.Va. 52,459 S.E.2d 329 (1995). 

On February 1,20165, the Petitioners moved for partial summary judgment on the issue of 

liability of Robert Paul Jackson6, after discovery had concluded7 and the case was being prepared 

for trial. Interestingly, the Petitioners had not hired any expert witness to dispute the opinions of 

the Respondent's accident reconstructionist. Moreover, the totality of all available and discovered 

evidence proved that there was no issue of material fact for jury determination on the issue of 

Jackson's liability. 

The Petitioner claims that the Circuit Court failed to view the facts in a light most favorable 

to the non-moving party (Petitioner), and the Circuit Court did not grant the Petitioner benefit of 

their inferences. However, "While the inference to be deduced from evidence is ordinarily a 

question for the jury, the sufficiency of the evidence to warrant the inference is a question of law 

for the court." Antonowich v. Home Life Ins. Co., 116 W. Va. 155, 179 S.E. 601, 603 (1935) 

5 Pursuant to the trial court's scheduling order, all dispositive motions were to be filed on or before 

February 1,2016. 

6 See J.A. 25-56. 

7 Pursuant to the trial court's scheduling order, discovery was to be completed by January 15,2016. 
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(citations omitted). The Antonowich Court when on to state, "The fact inferred should attend 

naturally and rationally the fact proven ... [i]1t is not enough that the facts proven permit an 

inference of a certain other fact sought to be established, but the inference must be the only one 

which can fairly and reasonably be drawn from the facts. * * * And naturally so, else the jury 

would be free for guesswork." Id. (citations omitted). The Petitioner has confused the Court's 

ruling on relevancy-a question for the Court-and incorrectly relies on Williams, supra.

alleging the inferences drawn were questions for the jury. Rather, the Circuit Court correctly 

evaluated the inferences under the relevancy test of Rule 401 of the West Virginia Rules of 

Evidence [J.A. 159] and, pursuant to Antonowich, properly found that the sufficiency of the 

relevant evidence, to warrant inference, supported the Plaintiffs motion for summary judgment. 

The Circuit Court thereafter properly granted the same as a matter of law. 

As noted in the crash reportS, Jackson failed to yield when he attempted to cross the 

highway, into the path of Harry Edward Myer, Jr. Jackson was therefore prima facie negligent 

because he violated one or more statutes when he attempted to cross oncoming traffic of U.S. 

Route 50, against two lanes of oncoming, eastbound traffic without yielding the right-of-way. In 

fact, in a strikingly similar case, this Court held, "[t]he making of a left tum into a passing lane !!!. 

across oncoming traffic is one of the most dangerous movements a vehicle can make on the 

highway, and the driver of a vehicle making such movement must ascertain if it can be done with 

reasonable safety." Syi. Pt. 1, Addair v. Bryant, 168 W. Va. 306, 284 S.E.2d 374 (1981). 

(Emphasis added). 

8 See J.A. 38 
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The Petitioners, in the face of the overwhelming evidence against them in the case, 

continued to attempt to mount a defense based solely upon speculation and conjecture. Part ofthis 

defense tactic was to attempt to prove that Harry Edward Myer, Jr., was somehow contributorily 

negligent in the crash. The Addair Court held that, "Contributory negligence on the part of the 

plaintiff is an affirmative defense. There is a presumption ofordinary care in favor of the plaintiff, 

and where the defendant relies upon contributory negligence, the burden of proof rests upon the 

defendant to show such negligence unless it is disclosed by the plaintiffs evidence or may be fairly 

inferred by all of the evidence and circumstances surrounding the case." Id. at Syl. Pt. 2, (Citations 

omitted). 

In their attempt to divert fault in this matter at trial, the Petitioners mistakenly argued that 

Harry Edward Myer, Jr., was under the influence of hydrocodone and that the same slowed his 

reaction time. However, the Petitioners had no evidence to support this claim and the same was 

rejected by the trial court when it granted partial summary judgment against Jackson. Since they 

had not consulted an expert in an attempt to support their position9, the Petitioners subpoenaed 

James Kraner, Ph.D., a toxicologist from the State Medical Examiner's Office to appear the Ritchie 

Courthouse to vouch the record on their behalf during trial. Dr. Kraner testified as follows: 

"[Mr. Mohler]: The question I have for you lO, Doctor, is whether you have an 
opinion as to whether or not someone that has been taking that amount of 
hydrocodone over that period of time,l1 whether that will slow one's reaction, in 

9 The Petitioners did not have any evidence to support their position that Harry Edward Myer, Jr. 's, reaction 

time was slowed. They based their argument on speculation and conjecture and attempted to vouch the 

record at trial since they had no evidence to oppose the Respondents motion for partial summary judgment 

on the issue ofJackson's liability. 

10 The Petitioners subpoenaed the doctor to travel from Charleston to answer one (1) question. 

11 SO pills per month, 7.5 milligrams each, since 2005. [J.A. 67-75; 21S]. 
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other words, somebody's reaction and perception time, say in the situation of an 
accident. 

[Doctor Kraner]: It would be expected to be very minimal, ifnot at all; the tolerance 
that occurs form the use of this drug. The first time he used it and you have that 
blood concentration, he might have had impairment, but having used this for a 
period of time I think it's unlikely." [lA.218-19]. 

Although the Petitioners weren't getting anywhere with their claims that Harry Edward 

Myer, Jr.'s, reaction time was slowed, they persisted in their efforts to create the illusion that he 

was still somehow comparatively at fault, through even more speculation and conjecture. The, 

Petitioners routinely attempted to intentionally obfuscate the facts of the crash.12 For instance, 

although the Petitioners erroneously state that "the evidence in this case showed that Mr. Jackson 

cleared the right lane" [Petitioners' Brief, p. 9], the evidence unequivocally showed that the crash 

occurred in the eastbound driving (right hand) lane of U.S. Route 50. In fact, Dan Aerni, the 

Respondent's accident reconstructionist, testified in his deposition as follows: 

"[Mr. Mohler]: Well, let me ask you one last thing. Where was the point of impact 
as far as where was that rear part of the truck bed when he -- when Mr. Myer 
impacted it? 

[Mr. Aerni]: Very close to the broken white line separating the two eastbound land 
of Route 50 and --

Q: Okay. 

A. -- Approximately in the center of the intersection. 

Q. Which side ofthe broken white line, the fast lane side or the slow lane side? 

A. I would say just a tiny bit on the slow lane side. 

12 The Petitioners' brief states that the crash occurred in the fast lane of U.S. Route 50 and that Jackson 
cleared the slow lane, all ofwhich is against all available evidence and based solely on Jackson's discredited 
deposition testimony. 
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Q. Okay. 

A. But very, very close to it." 

The Petitioners knew the testimony of Mr. Aerni contradicted their erroneous claims. In 

fact, they quote a portion ofMr. Aerni's testimony [Petitioners' Brief, p. 8] but conveniently leave 

out the second half of the exchange quoted above because it completely controverts their false 

assertion that Jackson "cleared the right lane." 

The Petitioners also knew about the testimony of Corporal Jason Brewer, West Virginia 

State Police. Corporal Brewer investigated the crash and prepared the State of West Virginia 

Uniform Traffic Crash Report for this crash. He testified as follows: 

"[Mr. Mohler]: Can you describe the skid marks where they started and where they 
ended up? 

[Corp. Brewer]: They started basically in the center of the driving lane or the right 
land of the eastbound lane, if that makes sense. They ended up toward the hash 
marks or the middle of the lane in the intersection. 

Q. When you say the hash marks, that would be the dotted white line that separates 
the fast from the slow lane? 

A. Correct. 

Q. From your examination and inspection of the scene of the accident, would it be 
your conclusion that the point of impact was basically where the dotted white lines 
were? 

A. Correct. Approximately near the center." 

[J.A. 215]. 

Similarly, Corporal Brewer's diagram of the crash scene shows the point of impact being just to 

the south of the eastbound hash marks (in the slow lane) near the center of the intersection. [l.A. 
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455]. Again, their own witness contradicts their false claims that the crash occurred in the left

hand lane. 

Moreover, the photographs attached to the crash report show that approximately 2 feet of 

the back quarter panel on the Petitioners' truck were impacted in the crash. [J.S.471-72]. There 

were also joints of PVC pipe strapped to the bed of the truck which extended beyond the bed and 

into the lane of travel of the decedent. [J.A. 468]. Jackson testified that" ...the motorcycle hit the 

back part of the hanger for the springs and they hit it there and they -- some, a couple three of the 

leafs twisted out or whatever." [J.A.527]. Thus, at least as much of the truck that included the 

springs and hanger was in the driving lane at the time of impact. 

Furthermore, the Petitioners produced no evidence that Harry Edward Myer, Jr., was 

travelling above the posted 65 m.p.h. speed limit. Likewise, they produced no evidence or 

testimony that the decedent was negligent in any way. The Petitioners' basis for comparative 

negligence was based solely on unfounded speculation and conjecture that Harry Edward Myer, 

Jr., incorrectly moved to his left as Jackson was driving from Harry Edward Myer, Jr. 's, right side 

and across his lane of travel. 

Even though the Petitioners repeatedly attempt to obfuscate the facts, their arguments are 

without merit. The instant case is strikingly similar to the Addair, supra. In that matter, on a clear, 

sunny day, the driver ofa truck had to make a lefthand turn across the highway 13 to reach a parking 

lot. The Defendant in Addair pulled across traffic and blocked the entire opposite lane of travel. 

The Defendant in that matter increased his speed to attempt to avoid the crash and pull the truck 

13 The highway in Addair was a two lane highway whereas U.S. Route 50 is a four lane divided highway. 
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off the highway. However, the motorcycle hit the truck and both of the motorcyclists were killed. 

A witness stated that the motorcycle hit the right rear comer of the truckl4 . 

Just as the Circuit Court below, the trial court in Addair rejected the defendant's contention 

that he was entitled to a cont~butory negligence instruction when he contended, just as the 

Petitioners herein, that the plaintiffs decedents had a duty to avoid colliding with the truck that 

was in their lane of travel. The Addair Court affirmed the trial court's ruling and found "The 

execution of the left tum in these circumstances was fraught with danger. ... Plaintiffs' decedents 

were coming in the opposite direction around the curve and struck the right rear ofthe truck. Under 

these set of facts, we find no evidence that the plaintiffs' decedents were contributorily negligent." 

Id. at 312,379. 

"A motion for summary judgment should be granted only when it is clear that there is no 

genuine issue of fact to be tried and inquiry concerning the facts is not desirable to clarify the 

application of the law." Syl. Pt. 3, Aetna Casualty & Surety Co. v. Federal Insurance Co. a/New 

York, 148 W.Va. 160, 133 S.E.2d 770 (1963). In this matter, the Petitioners could not meet their 

burden ofproof to rely on contributory or comparative negligence of the decedent. In fact, during 

Jackson's deposition, he testified as follows: 

[Mr. Windom]: Is there anything else that you know of that would lead anyone to 
believe, any other evidence, any other statements, any other witnesses, that would 
lead one to believe that Harry Myer was negligent in any way for this crash? 

14 In the instant matter, Jackson was also pulling across traffic to execute a left-hand turn and he testified 
that when he saw the motorcycle he attempted to speed up and move to the side of the highway [J.A. 537
38]. However, the Respondent contends that there is a greater duty of care on Jackson, herein, than in 
Addair because Jackson was driving across a four lane divided highway with greater speeds for oncoming 
traffic. 
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[Mr. Jackson]: Well, I -- there's nobody, except me, I think, that has any idea. 

[J.A.557]. 

The Petitioners' claim of the decedent's comparative fault was made not with facts but 

instead out ofpure speculation and conj ecture. At trial, the Petitioners' persisted in their fantastical 

theory and attempted to vouch the record with Corporal Brewer's testimony. Unfortunately for 

the Petitioners, he confirmed that the crash happened in the driving lane "near the hash marks" of 

U.S. Route 50, not in the left-hand (fast) land as alleged by Jackson. Amazingly, even with this 

overwhelming evidence against them, the Petitioners still persisted with their misguided theory of 

comparative fault. They next attempted to vouch the record with the testimony of toxicologist,

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